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February 6, 2025 
 
 
VIA EMAIL ONLY -- lelmer@milwaukee.gov 
 
Administrative Review Board of Appeals 
c/o Linda Elmer, Staff Assistant 
Office of the City Clerk 
200 E. Wells St., Rm. 205 
Milwaukee, WI  53202 
 
Re:  Nuisance property designation on 4937 N. 39th St.  
  File No. 24200 
 
Dear Administrative Review Board of Appeals: 
 
Enclosed for review, relative to the appeal of the above-captioned matter, are redacted 
materials related to the nuisance activity identified in the nuisance determination notice. 
 
By letter dated October 15, 2024, the Milwaukee Police Department sent written notice 
that 4937 N. 39th St. is determined to be a nuisance pursuant to Milwaukee City 
Ordinance (MCO) § 80-10. The letter identified two shootings that qualify as nuisance 
activity pursuant to MCO § 80-10-2-c-1-Q. This ordinance subsection refers to another 
ordinance that prohibits the discharge of firearms in the City. MCO § 105-35.  
 
The first shooting occurred on August 19, 2024. Materials have been enclosed as Exhibit 
A. The letter mistakenly stated August 18, 2024, but the computer-aided dispatch number 
is noticed for a shooting that occurred at this location on August 19, 2024. The police 
report identifies the crime as a 1st-Degree Recklessly Endangering Safety.  
 
It should be noted that non-fatal shootings are frequently criminally prosecuted as 
Recklessly Endangering Safety in violation of Wis. Stat. § 941.30. This criminal violation 
is also a nuisance activity pursuant to MCO § 80-10-c-1-k. This specific nuisance activity 
is a type that qualifies for two responses in a year. MCO § 80-10-3-a. 
 

EVAN C. GOYKE 
City Attorney 

MARY L. SCHANNING 
ROBIN A. PEDERSON  
NAOMI E. SANDERS 
JULIE P. WILSON 
Deputy City Attorneys 

HEIDI WICK SPOERL 
KATHRYN Z. BLOCK 
THOMAS D. MILLER 
PETER J. BLOCK 
PATRICK J. MCCLAIN 
ANDREA J. FOWLER 
JOANNA FRACZEK 
HANNAH R. JAHN 
MEIGHAN M. ANGER 
ALEXANDER R. CARSON  
GREGORY P. KRUSE 
ALEX T. MUELLER  
ALEXANDER D. COSSI 
LISA A. GILMORE  
KATHERINE A. HEADLEY  
SHEILA THOBANI 
STACY J. MILLER 
JORDAN M. SCHETTLE 
THERESA A. MONTAG 
ALEXANDER E. FOUNDOS 
TRAVIS J. GRESHAM 
KYLE W. BAILEY 
JOSEPH M. DOBBS 
WILLIAM K. HOTCHKISS 
CLINT B. MUCHE 
TYLER M. HELSEL 
ZACHARY A. HATFIELD 
MEGHAN C. MCCABE 
MARIA E. MESOLORAS 
CYNTHIA HARRIS ORTEGA 
OLUWASEUN CHRIS IBITOYE 
KEVIN P. TODT 
NATHANIEL E. ADAMSON 
JUSTIN J. DREIKOSEN 
Assistant City Attorneys 



Administrative Review Board of Appeals 
c/o Linda Elmer, Staff Assistant 
Office of the City Clerk 
February 6, 2025 
Page 2 
 
 
The first shooting was relayed, in part, by F.C. who lived in a unit at this premises. F.C. 
stated that D.D. is her fiancé and J.S. is her ex-boyfriend. F.C. said a truck is going to be 
transferred to her, but it is still registered to J.S.’s ex-wife L.C.S. It is also reported that 
J.S. has a new girlfriend named S.L.W. 
 
F.C. stated that, a few days prior to the shooting, J.S. and S.L.W. were using the truck 
and, the day after, it was reported that the truck was at S.L.W.’s uncle’s house for repairs. 
When J.S. called the uncle, it was stated that the truck was not there. It does not appear 
that the truck was ever reported stolen. 
 
On the day of the shooting, they observed the truck in the area of a McDonald’s that they 
were walking towards. J.S. ran ahead to talk with the occupants of the truck. F.C. and 
D.D. asked for the truck back, but that request was declined. 
 
F.C. and D.D. returned to 4937 N. 39th St. and they stated that the truck, with four armed 
males, arrived at the premises a few hours later. The group went to the hallway area of 
the premises and then left. The group reportedly came back thirty minutes later. Three 
men exited the truck and one of them fired rounds at F.C. and D.D. 
 
Another witness, L.W., is D.D.’s mother and she observed the shooting. She said she 
looked out and saw her son’s truck. She said after the shooting, the vehicle drove away 
and stopped at the first intersection. S.L.W. was dropped off at this intersection.  
 
S.L.W. was interviewed and she said the she was dropped off prior to the shooting. She 
said the occupants of the truck were cocaine dealers. She said the truck belonged to a 
Hispanic male and the truck was a drug rental. 
 
The second shooting occurred on October 12, 2024. Materials have been enclosed as 
Exhibit B. A man died from gunshot wounds and a woman was shot in the left arm.  
 
The CAD stated that the event location is 4937 N 39th St. and a caller states that two girls 
were fighting and a man came out and shot him. It was stated that F.D. was part of the 
altercation and fled the scene. The altercation started inside of the apartment building and 
officers conducted a canvass of this location. Officers waited at Apartment 10 for the 
board-up. The suspected primary address of F.D. was 4937 N. 39th St., Apt. #10. 
 
An interview of P.N.E. stated that they saw a woman call their daughters to the address to 
fight. The fight occurred in front of the residence.  A man exited 4937 N. 39th St. and shot 
victims. An interview of M.S.W. sated that she called women to her apartment because 
she believed another woman stole clothes from her apartment. She said the fight occurred 
in front of the residence. 
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Third, assessing the cost of police activity against the owner of the premises does not 
violate any Constitutional rights. There is no possibility that the regulation will chill 
protected activity because there is no constitutional right to police services. Hilton v. City 
of Wheeling, 209 F.3d 1005, 1006–07 (7th Cir. 2000). 
 
Finally, Exhibit C shows Youssef Berrada or his company have been the owner of the 
premises throughout the incidents. 
 
Very truly yours, 
 
Electronically signed by Nathaniel Adamson 
 
NATHANIEL ADAMSON       
Assistant City Attorney  
 
NEA/dpb 
 
Enclosures 
 
c (w/ encl.):  Attorney Daniel Conway (via email only -- Dconway@conwayjosetti.com) 
  Attorney Michael Pflugoeft (via email only -- MPflughoeft@conwayjosetti.com) 
 
 
1032-2025-77:296106 

 




























































































